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Front cover: Five of eight plants new to science that were discovered by accident in Bibb County, Alabama in 1992.
Research scientists have described the discovery as the most unique botanical discovery in the continental United
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To the Honorable Governor,
Members of the State Legislature, and
the Citizens of Alabama:

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of Alabama for the year ended
September 30, 2008. I believe the information as presented is accurate in all material respects and complies with Article IV, Section 72
of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 and Section 41-4-3(4) of the Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. The completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the State’s management. This report complies with Article V, Section
137 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 and Section 36-16-1(6) of the Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, as the financial report
for the State Auditor, State Treasurer, and State Comptroller.

Introduction to the Report

Internal Controls

The internal controls in the State's accounting system have been designed to comply with Alabama statutes requiring the audit of
receipts and receivables; the determination of legality and correctness of each claim and expenditure; and that funds are appropriated,
allotted, and on deposit in the State Treasury before any warrant is issued. The internal controls include manual pre-audit and
automated system edits. As an additional control, the State Auditor's Office is responsible for a post-audit of the accounts and records
of the Department of Finance and the State Treasurer's Office. These internal accounting controls provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss or unauthorized disposition and the reliability of the financial records from
which the financial reports are prepared. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed
the resulting benefits.

Audit

This CAFR has been audited by the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts. The Examiners conducted their audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
The Examiners' unqualified opinion appears at the beginning of the financial section of this report. The State will also undergo an audit
of federal programs to conform to the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Information relating to the single audit,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and audit findings and recommendations, is issued in a separate report and will
be available at a later date from the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 requires that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview and analysis to accompany the Basic Financial Statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).
This letter of transmittal is intended to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found
immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report. The MD&A provides an overview of the State’s financial activities
addressing both governmental and business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial statements. In addition, the
MD&A focuses on the State’s major funds, such as the General Fund, Education Trust Fund, Alabama Trust Fund, and Unemployment
Compensation Trust Fund.

Profile of the Government

Reporting Entity

This report presents financial information on all of State government as a single reporting entity. While state law allows many state
organizations to operate largely independent of the daily central control and scrutiny of the Department of Finance, State Auditor, and
State Treasurer, this report combines the financial data of all state organizations in order to present a comprehensive picture of state
finances. The numerous departments, agencies, elected officials, boards, commissions, authorities, colleges, universities, and other
organizational units of the State are included in this report in accordance with standards established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. These standards make a distinction between organizations which are considered to be part of the primary government
of the State and those which are component units. A component unit is defined as a legally separate corporate entity for which the State
is considered to be financially accountable. The criteria used to determine financial accountability include the appointment of a majority
of the governing board, the ability of the State to impose its will on the organization, and the potential for the organization to be a
financial benefit or financial burden to the State. The State is also considered financially accountable for any organization having an
independently appointed board if that organization is fiscally dependent on the State. An organization is fiscally dependent if it is
unable to adopt a budget, set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without the approval of the State. Component units can be reported
as if they are a part of the primary government (“blended presentation”) if they provide services solely to the government, but most of
the State’s component units do not and are therefore presented separately (“discrete presentation”) in these financial statements. The
largest of the blended component units includes the Federal Aid Highway Finance Authority, State Parks Improvement Corporation, and
the Building Renovation Finance Authority. The major discretely presented component units are the Alabama Public School and
College Authority, the Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation, the Alabama Housing Finance Authority, the Alabama
Water Pollution Control Authority, The Public Education Employees’ Health Insurance Board, the State Employees’ Health Insurance
Board, the University of Alabama, Auburn University, and the University of South Alabama. Note 1 to the financial statements
provides a more complete description of the State’s reporting entity.

Budgetary Controls

Budgetary control is exercised through the Executive Budget Office of the Department of Finance based on the Appropriation Acts of
the State Legislature. Alabama's annual Appropriation Acts include legally adopted budgets for the General Fund, the Education Trust
Fund, and other budgeted funds. The Appropriation Acts identify the source of funding and the programmatic (functional) areas for
which expenditures are authorized. Both the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 and the statutes require a balanced budget for annual
financial operations. In the event that revenue collections do not meet budget projections, the Governor is required to prorate
appropriations and restrict allotments to prevent an overdraft in any fiscal year for which appropriations are made. Allotments of
appropriations are made quarterly based on plans of operations submitted by the departments and agencies. These appropriations and
allotments are enforced by automated edits that prevent allotments in excess of appropriations and expenditures in excess of allotments.
Encumbrance accounting is utilized as purchase orders are issued to insure that purchase orders plus expenditures do not exceed
allotment balances. Controls are further tightened at fiscal year-end by verifying that the total of purchase orders plus expenditures plus
any obligations (accounts payable) incurred against fiscal year appropriations do not exceed allotments, and remaining allotments do not
exceed cash in the Treasury.



STATE OF ALABAMA

Cash Controls

The State's controls on cash are fiscally very conservative. Constitutional Amendment 26 prohibits the State Comptroller from drawing
warrants on the State Treasury unless there is money on hand to cover those warrants. This is more restrictive at the end of the fiscal
year when obligations (encumbrances and accounts payable) cannot exceed the available cash balance (cash less warrants payable). This
control is enforced by automated edits and tends to result in positive fund balances, even when GAAP basis accruals are made in the
financial statements. Compliance with Amendment 26 is demonstrated in the following exhibits for the General Fund and the Education
Trust Fund.

Summary of Receipts, Disbursements, and Cash Balances
General Fund
Last Five Fiscal Years - Cash Basis (Treasury Cash Only)
(Amounts in Thousands)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Beginning Cash Balance, October 1 $ 286,670 $ 325,122 $ 214,652 $ 187,411 $ 137471
Receipts 1,814,313 1,634,581 1,656,451 1,437,230 1,297,452
Disbursements 1,836,256 1,673,033 1,545,981 1,409,989 1,247,512
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Balance (21,943) (38,452) 110,470 27,241 49,940
Ending Cash Balance, September 30 264,727 286,670 325,122 214,652 187,411
Cash Balance Reserved for Obligations 44,424 46,335 60,686 45,945 30,704

Unobligated Cash Balance, September 30 $ 220,303 $ 240,335 $ 264436 § 168,707 $ 156,707

Summary of Receipts, Disbursements, and Cash Balances
Education Trust Fund
Last Five Fiscal Years - Cash Basis (Treasury Cash Only)
(Amounts in Thousands)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Beginning Cash Balance, October 1 $ 315,967 $ 739,687 $ 587,114 § 216,210 $ 32,078
Receipts 6,414,631 5,854,027 5,498,362 4,969,255 4,456,027
Disbursements 6,682,595 6,277,747 5,345,789 4,598,351 4,271,895

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Balance (267,964) (423,720) 152,573 370,904 184,132
Ending Cash Balance, September 30 48,003 315,967 739,687 587,114 216,210
Cash Balance Reserved for Obligations 48,003 35,922 44,632 16,455 26,304
Unobligated Cash Balance, September 30 $ - $ 280,045 $ 695,055 § 570,659 $ 189,906
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General Fund and Education Trust Fund Balances
The fund balances for the General Fund and the Education Trust Fund for the last five fiscal years are presented in the following table.
The fiscally conservative nature of Amendment 26 tends to produce positive fund balances every year.

FUND BALANCES - GAAP Basis

(Amounts in Millions)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
General Fund $ 381.7 $ 404.8 $ 4047 $ 2939 $ 2367
Education Trust Fund 186.8 528.4 1,029.5 1,016.1 543.1

Cash Management

The State Treasurer has the responsibility for the investment of cash balances. In accordance with statutory requirements, treasury cash
is primarily invested in time deposit - open accounts held in Alabama banks, repurchase agreements, and U.S. Treasury and Agency
securities.

The State Treasurer has placed considerable emphasis on cash management. In cooperation with state agencies, the receiving of funds
into the State Treasury is expedited, with all excess funds being invested. Interest earnings during the 2008 fiscal year were as follows:

Time Deposit Open Accounts $ 23.0 million
Repurchase Agreements $ 27.3 million
US Treasury and Agency Securities $ 23.1 million

Interest income is deposited in the State's General Fund to be appropriated by the State Legislature for government operations. In
addition to the management of the investment of these funds, the State Treasurer has statutory authority to invest for several state
agencies, with interest earnings being credited to those agencies.
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Economic Condition and Outlook

Alabama’s economy grew an estimated 1.4 percent in 2008, compared to the nation’s 1.2 percent. Alabama’s economy deteriorated in
the second half of 2008: employment growth was into negative ground, unemployment rate was highest in the last five years and house
price appreciation was below inflation. Building activity decreased significantly and the economic activity indexes showed a
descending trend. However, strong exports growth and positive personal income gains have limited the economic slowdown.

Alabama lost 2,900 jobs during the 12-month period ending in October 2008. The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate of 5.6
percent was significantly higher than the 3.5 percent rate seen in October 2007, but lower than the U. S. rate of 6.5 percent. Goods
producing sectors — construction, mining, and manufacturing — lost 11,400 jobs, while service providing industries gained 8,500. Job
growth was stable in governmental, professional and business services, and leisure and hospitality services. Retail trade lost 1,400 jobs,
with department stores and motor vehicle and parts dealers hit the hardest.

Manufacturing sector output declined by 3.3 percent in 2008, primarily due to output decreases of 11.1 percent in motor vehicle and
parts manufacturing, 8.3 percent in textiles, and 7.4 percent in machinery manufacturing. Weak consumer demand, slowing business
spending, and a worldwide economic slowdown contributed to the drop.

On the positive side, according to the U. S. Department of Commerce’s International Trade Administration, Alabama exports increased
4.0 percent to $14.4 billion in 2007, accounting for over 10.0 percent of Alabama Gross Domestic Product. Germany is Alabama’s
largest trading partner, while other Alabama export destinations include Canada, China, Mexico, the United Kingdom, Japan, and South
Korea. Transportation equipment was the state’s top export in 2007 at $5.9 billion. Other major export sectors in 2007 were chemicals,
machinery manufacturing, paper products, computers and electronic products and mining. During the first six months of 2008, the
fastest growing export was primary metals, with the value of shipments increasing from $253 million during the same period in 2007 to
almost $465 million, an increase of 83.0 percent.

The Alabama economy had been forecasted to grow by just 0.3 percent in 2009, dragged down by the largest decline in consumer
spending in decades and a drop in business spending. Most sectors of the state’s economy are expected to see a net loss in payrolls. The
unemployment rate of 7.8 percent in January 2009 exceeded the estimated 7.0 percent by the end of the year. The Alabama economy
could actually decline in 2009 instead of the modest growth forecasted by economists a few months ago. Both commercial construction
and government spending are expected to decline substantially in 2009 and going forward into 2010.

Annual Growth of Gross Product
Last Ten Years Annual Growth in Personal Income

Last Ten Years
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Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Alabama for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007. This was the tenth consecutive year that the State has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements
Production of this report would not have been possible without the assistance of all state organizations which supplied financial
information vital to the accuracy of this report. As we strive to produce this report in future years and to further enhance its quality, the

continued support and cooperation of all agencies remain essential. I also express my appreciation to my entire staff in the Division of
Control and Accounts, whose daily efforts to improve the accountability of state government make the quality of this report possible.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert L. Childree
State Comptroller
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State of Alabama
Department of

Examiners of Public Accounts

Ronald L. Jones
Chief Examiner

Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Alabama, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the State of Alabama’s basic financial statements
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State of
Alabama Department of Finance and management of the State of Alabama. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain agencies and funds. These agencies and funds reflect the following
percentages of total assets and revenues or additions of the indicated opinion units:

Opinion Unit and Related Agencies/Funds Percent of Opinion Unit’s | Percent of Opinion Unit’s
Audited by Other Auditors Total Assets Total Revenues/Additions
Governmental Activities:
Alabama Educational Television 0.06% 0.06%
Foundation Authority

Alabama Public Health Care Authority

| Business-Type Activities:
Alabama Health Insurance Plan 31% 10%
Alabama State Port Authority

Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units:
State Employees’ Insurance Board
Public Education Employees’ Health

Insurance Fund

Alabama Housing Finance Authority
Alabama Water Pollution Control Authority 80% 73%
Space Science Exhibit Commission
Alabama Drinking Water Finance Authority
Alabama Higher Education Loan Corporation
University of Alabama
Auburn University
University of South Alabama
University of Montevallo
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Opinion Unit and Related Agencies/Funds Percent of Opinion Unit’s | Percent of Opinion Unit’s

Audited by Other Auditors Total Assets Total Revenues/Additions
Proprietary/Enterprise Fund:
Alabama State Port Authority 100% 100%

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information:
Retirement Systems of Alabama
Employees’ Savings Plans (PEIRAF and

RSA-1)
Retired Education Employees’ Health Care
Trust
Retired State Employees’ Health Care Trust 93% 69%
Prepaid Affordable College Tuition Program
Alabama Educational Television
Foundation Authority
Alabama Health Insurance Plan
Alabama College Education Savings Plan
| Alabama Public Health Care Authority |

The financial statements of these agencies and funds were audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for
those financial statements, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the Retirement
Systems of Alabama, the Employees’ Savings Plans (Public Employees’ Individual Retirement
Account Fund and the RSA-1 Deferred Compensation Plan), the Public Education Employees’
Health Insurance Fund, the State Employees’ Insurance Board, the Retired Education Employees’
Health Care Trust, the Retired State Employees’ Health Care Trust, the Alabama Higher Education
Loan Corporation, and the Alabama College Education Savings Plan, were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Alabama as of
September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
31, 2009, on our consideration of the State of Alabama’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of the State of Alabama's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Required Supplementary Information, listed in
the accompanying table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis and the other Required Supplementary Information. However, we did not audit the
information and do not express an opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of Alabama’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section,
listed in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and the
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Tonatl . e

RONALD L. JONES
Chief Examiner
Department of Examiners of Public Accounts

March 31, 2009
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STATE OF ALABAMA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the State of Alabama for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2008. Please consider the information presented here in conjunction with the letter of transmittal, which is located in the
Introductory Section of this report, and the State’s financial statements, which immediately follow this discussion and analysis.

Financial Highlights

e  The State’s net assets decreased by $832 million during fiscal year 2008. The assets of the State exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the fiscal year by $23.5 billion (net assets). Of this amount, $18.3 billion was invested in capital assets (net of related
debt), and $2.6 billion was in the Alabama Trust Fund Capital.

e The Change in Net Assets in governmental activities was a negative $903 million.

e  Governmental activities have $3.3 billion in investments, $3.0 billion of which is in the Alabama Trust Fund.

e Taxreceipts were essentially unchanged compared to the previous year, reflecting the downturn in the economy in the second
half of the year.

e Investment earnings were a net loss of $107 million, a decrease of $661 million compared to the previous year.

e  The business-type activities reported net assets at year-end of $1.6 billion, an increase of $70 million for the fiscal year.

e  The State’s total bonded debt at the end of the fiscal year was $1.66 billion, a decrease of $22 million, which represents the net
difference between new issuances and payments and refundings of outstanding debt.

e During the year the State issued $65 million in new revenue bonds and $84 million in refunding bonds. The State made
payments on general obligation bonds of $52 million during the year.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.1
billion, a decrease of $1.4 billion from last year. Approximately $1.8 billion of this amount is unreserved, undesignated fund
balance.

e On a budgetary basis, General Fund expenditures and other uses exceeded revenues and other sources by $21 million.
However, on a GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) basis, General Fund expenditures and other uses exceeded
revenues and other sources by $24 million. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule in Required Supplementary Information
reconciles these amounts and lists the accounting basis differences.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State of Alabama’s basic financial statements. The State’s basic financial
statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the State’s financial position and activities measured in a
manner similar to a private-sector business. Assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are measured and reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide financial statements exclude
fiduciary activities.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the State’s assets and liabilities at the end of the fiscal year. The difference
between the State’s assets and its liabilities is its net assets. Increases or decreases in net assets from year to year may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the State is improving or not.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the State’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the State that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the State include general government,
economic development and regulation, education and cultural resources, natural resources and recreation, health- physical and mental,
social services, protection of persons and property, and transportation. Examples of business-type activities of the State are operation of
the State’s system of community and technical colleges, unemployment compensation services, operation of facilities for the distribution
and sale of alcoholic beverages, and services for shippers at the Port of Mobile.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

The government-wide financial statements include not only the State of Alabama itself (known as the primary government), but also
legally separate component units for which the State is financially accountable. The major component units include the Public School
and College Authority, Housing Finance Authority, State Employees’ Insurance Board, Public Education Employees’ Health Insurance
Board, Water Pollution Control Authority, Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation, University of Alabama, Auburn
University, and University of South Alabama. Financial information for the component units is reported in a separate column from the
financial information presented for the primary government. The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately
following this discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for a particular purpose. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the State can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds

Most of the State’s basic services are reported in governmental funds. The governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of resources of these funds and the balances of those resources available at year-end. These funds are measured
and reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances are followed by a reconciliation to the government—wide statements.

The types of funds which are categorized as governmental funds are the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds,
debt service funds, and permanent funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the
governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Alabama Trust Fund,
Education Trust Fund, Public Road and Bridge Fund, Public Welfare Trust Fund, and Alabama Medicaid Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated column on the basic
financial statements. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds can be found in the combining and individual
fund statements and schedules section of this report.

Proprietary funds

Services for which the State charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. The State maintains two different types
of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Like the government-wide statements, proprietary funds use the
accrual basis of accounting.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
These funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public in a manner similar to private business enterprises.
The major enterprise funds are the Unemployment Compensation Trust, State Port Authority, Alabama College System, and the
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor enterprise funds can be found in the combining and
individual fund statements and schedules section of this report.

Internal service funds report activities that provide supplies and services to other state agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis. These
funds are reported as governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements. These funds provide computer services,
information technology, telecommunications, rental of office buildings, janitorial services, building maintenance, manufacturing
activities, and liability protection. The internal service funds are aggregated in a single column on the proprietary fund statements.

Fiduciary funds

The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee pension plans. It is also responsible for other assets that, because of a trust
arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of
Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. These funds, which include pension and other employee benefits, private-
purpose, and agency funds are reported using accrual accounting. The government-wide financial statements exclude fiduciary fund
activities and balances because the resources of those funds are not available to support the State’s own programs.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. They explain amounts shown in the financial
statements and provide additional information that is essential to the fair presentation of the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information which includes (1) budgetary comparison schedule reconciling the budgetary fund balances and generally accepted
accounting principles fund balances at fiscal year-end, (2) ten year loss development information for the State Insurance Fund, (3) a
schedule of funding progress for the Employees’ Retirement System, (4) a schedule of funding progress for the Retired State
Employees’ Health Care Trust, and (5) information about infrastructure assets reported using the modified approach.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds,
internal service funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor discretely presented component units. These funds are added together by fund
type and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The State’s combined assets exceeded
liabilities by $23.5 billion as of September 30, 2008.

The largest component (78 percent) of the State’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets, such as land, buildings, equipment,
and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, tunnels), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The State uses
these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
State’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Capital Assets increased
$731 million. Of that amount $473 million was infrastructure and infrastructure construction in progress.

Long-term liabilities increased 5 percent, or $111 million. The increase in long-term liabilities was primarily the result of the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 45 requiring Other Post Employment Benefits in long-term debt in the amount of $187 million.

About 98 percent of the State’s net assets that are unrelated to capital assets are restricted and represent resources that are subject to
external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or legislative restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $121
million is unrestricted net assets and represents the amount that may be used to meet the State’s ongoing obligations that are not funded
by resources that are restricted. Internally imposed designations of resources are not presented as restricted net assets. The State has a
deficit in unrestricted net assets for governmental activities of $223 million.

Net Assets as of September 30
(Amounts in Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current and Other Assets $ 7468425 $ 8,957451  $ 1,083,882 $ 1,080,603  $ 8,552,307 $ 10,038,054
Capital Assets 18,004,733 17,418 977 1,338,637 1,193,377 19,343,370 18,612,354
Total Assets 25473,158 26,376,428 2,422,519 2,273,980 27,895,677 28,650,408
Long-term Liabilities 1,550,419 1,422,719 590,330 606,264 2,140,749 2,028,983
Other Liabilities 1,945,095 2,073,554 254,061 160,056 2,199,156 2,233,610
Total Liabilities 3,495,514 3,496,273 844,391 766,320 4,339,905 4,262,593
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 17,576,424 16,973,157 753,665 709,460 18,330,089 17,682,617
Restricted 4,624,715 6,020,208 479,666 513,663 5,104,381 6,533,871
Unrestricted (223,495) (113,210) 344,797 284,537 121,302 171,327

Total Net Assets $ 21977644 $ 22,880,155 $ 1,578,128 $ 1,507,660 $§ 23,555,772 $ 24,387,815
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The following table was derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities. As a result of the excess of expenses over
revenues, the State’s net assets decreased by $832 million during fiscal year 2008. Taxes provided $7.7 billion, or approximately 42
percent, of the State’s total revenue. Tax revenues held relatively steady compared to the previous year as Alabama’s economy slowed
down. Investment earnings were a loss of $107 million, a decrease of $661 million from the previous year, reflecting the steep declines
in market returns for investments. Charges for Services revenue increased $224 million, or 11 percent. $111 million was from
increased revenue from oil and gas leases. Also, court ordered settlements increased by $83 million because of settlements received by
the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources. Capital Grants and Contributions revenue increased $149 million, or 20
percent, largely from an increase in federal grant reimbursements for road and bridge construction.

Total expenses increased by $1.3 billion in 2008. Spending on Education and Cultural Resources increased by 10.3 percent, or $671
million. Included in this amount was an increase in support for local school systems of $392 million, or 8.5% percent and an increase in
support for universities of $190 million, or 16 percent. Included in both of these increases was funding for a pay raise for teachers and
related personnel. The increase in total expenses also included the accrual of other post employment benefits, as required by GASB
Statement No. 45, which added $187 million to expenses, and an increase in payroll costs of $163 million, reflecting a general pay raise
of 3.5 percent for state employees.

Education and Cultural Resources spending was $7.2 billion, or 37.2 percent, of the State’s total expenses. A total of $5.1 billion, or
26.4 percent, was spent on Health, down from 28.6 percent the previous year as spending held steady. Of the $5.1 billion total, $4.2
billion was spent on Medicaid programs. Spending for the Medicaid program decreased $94 million, or 2 percent. Costs for
pharmaceuticals and physician care increased 13 percent and 15 percent respectively, while nursing home and hospital care decreased
11 percent and 19 percent respectively. Spending decline for nursing home and hospital care because of a reduction in special
enhancements paid to providers with high levels of Medicaid patients. The Public Health Department spent $19 million more on the
Children’s Health Insurance Program.
Changes in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30
(Amounts in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 1,450,729 $ 1,263,166 $ 815,230 $ 778,765 $ 2,265,959 $ 2,041,931
Operating Grants and Contributions 6,670,099 6,617,849 305,339 270,897 6,975,438 6,888,746
Capital Grants and Contributions 874,111 719,041 13,717 19,413 887,828 738,454
General Revenues:
Taxes 7,729,358 7,678,176 9,912 9,331 7,739,270 7,688,007
Investment Earnings (141,251) 513,750 34,631 40,206 (106,620) 553,956
Miscellaneous 738,746 744,942 13,257 3421 752,003 748,363
Total Revenues 17,321,792 17,536,924 1,192,086 1,122,533 18,513,878 18,659,457
Expenses:
Economic Development and Regulation 281,176 213,756 281,176 213,756
Education and Cultural Resources 7,198,488 6,527,515 7,198,488 6,527,515
Natural Resources and Recreation 135,368 131,688 135,368 131,688
Health 5,144,802 5,165,470 5,144,802 5,165470
Social Services 1,743,177 1,678,091 1,743,177 1,678,091
Protection of Persons and Property 1,103,566 1,014,248 1,103,566 1,014,248
Transportation 1,094,598 997,376 1,094,598 997,376
General Government 1,021,561 925237 1,021,561 925237
Debt Service - Interest and Other Charges 57,253 43391 57,253 43391
Unemployment Compensation 330,068 248,448 330,068 248,448
State Port Authority 127,200 115,714 127,200 115,714
Alabama College System 812,195 745,122 812,195 745,122
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 249,389 230,370 249,389 230,370
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 47,168 45955 47,168 45,955
Total Expenses 17,779,989 16,696,772 1,566,020 1,385,609 19,346,009 18,082,381
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Before Contributions and Transfers (458,197) 840,152 (373,934) (263,076) (832,131) 577,076
Contributions to Permanent Funds & Endowments - - 88 131 88 131
Transfers (444314) (379,209) 444314 379,209 - -
Change in Net Assets (902,511) 460,943 70,468 116,264 (832,043) 577,207
Net Assets- Beginning 22,380,155 22419212 1,507,660 1,391,396 24,387,815 23,810,608
Net Assets- Ending $ 21977644 $ 22,880,155 $ 1,578,128 $ 1,507,660 $ 23,555,772 $ 24,387,815
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Governmental Activities

Total revenues for governmental activities in fiscal year 2008 were $17.3 billion. Revenue is categorized as either program revenue,
which is generated by the program itself or is received from another government, or general revenue. Program revenues totaled $9.0
billion, up from $8.6 billion the previous year. Operating grants and contributions are the largest program revenues, and at $6.7 billion,
make up 39 percent of total governmental revenues. Operating grants and contributions grew very slightly for the second year in a row,
increasing by $52 million compared to the previous year. About 88 percent of operating and 96 percent of the capital grants were
received from the Federal government. Capital grants and contributions increased $155 million, or 21.5%, primarily because the
Department of Transportation had more federal grant reimbursements this year. Charges for services increased $188 million, or 15
percent, compared to the previous year. Of that $188 million, $111 million is attributable to an increase in revenues from oil and gas
leases. General revenues, which include taxes, of governmental activities were $8.3 billion, a decrease of nearly 7 percent. Taxes were
$7.7 billion. Revenue from all tax types represents 45 percent of total governmental revenues earned during fiscal year 2008. Of the
$7.7 billion in tax revenues, the largest taxes were income taxes of $3.5 billion and sales and use taxes of $2.3 billion. Sales and use
taxes were level while income taxes grew 1.9 percent, reflecting the downturn in the economy.

Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Operating Grants and
Contributions
39%

Capital Grants and
Contributions
5%

Other
3%

Charges for
Services
8%

Taxes
45%
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The two largest activities (1) Education and Cultural Resources and (2) Health together accounted for 69 percent of the governmental
activities expenses for fiscal year 2008. Social Services accounted for 10 percent of the governmental activities expenses. Overall
expenses increased by $1.1 billion, or 6.5 percent. Education spending increased 10 percent, or $670 million, which included a pay
raise for teachers and education support personnel. Education and Cultural Resources now makes up 40 percent of governmental
activity expenses, up from 39 percent last year. Within Education and Cultural, 91 percent is for support for local school systems and
state universities. Health accounted for 29 percent of state spending, the same as last year. The Medicaid program accounts for 81
percent of Health spending and the Department of Public Health accounts for 13 percent.

Expenses - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008
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Business-type Activities

The largest business-type activity is the Alabama College System, which accounts for half of business-type net assets. The other major
business-type activities are the Alabama Port Authority, the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, and the Unemployment Compensation
Trust. In fiscal year 2008 the net assets of business-type activities increased by $70 million. Transfers from the Education Trust Fund
to the Alabama College System were a major part of the increase in net assets. Revenues of business-type activities totaled $1.2 billion.
Most of this revenue was self-generated program revenues so only $58 million of the $1.2 billion revenues came from general revenues.
The program revenues consisted of $815 million of charges for services, $305 million of operating grants and contributions, and $14
million of capital grants and contributions. The total expenses for business-type activities were $1.6 billion.

Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds

Governmental Funds

The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of fiscal year 2008, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.1 billion. Of this total amount,
$3.2 billion is reserved and is not available for spending because it has already been legally dedicated for various contractual
commitments, court settlements, constitutional restrictions, and other purposes. The largest reserved amount of $2.6 billion is for
Alabama Trust Capital. The Alabama Trust Fund originally was a permanent fund, but is now a special revenue fund because of an
amendment to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 which allows spending of principal equal to the previous year’s unrealized gains.
$248 million of the balance of the Alabama Trust Fund is reserved for the Education Rainy Day Account for the Education Trust Fund.
That account was created by a constitutional amendment. Another $353 million has been reserved for a variety of purposes while $191
million of the Governmental Funds have been designated for various capital projects and debt service, leaving $1.8 billion as unreserved
and undesignated.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the State. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the
General Fund was $376 million, and reserved fund balance was $5 million. Expenditures for the General Fund increased $159 million,
or 11 percent. Health expenditures increased $71 million, for increased grant payments related to Medicaid programs. Protection of
Persons and Property expenditures increased $56 million, with the majority of these increases being for inmate administration and
highway patrol for the State. Spending on General Government increased $24 million, with $21 million going for employee salaries and
benefits. The legislature granted all state employees a 3.5 percent raise in 2008 so General Fund spending for salaries and benefits was
up in all functional categories along with spending for professional services, supplies and grants. Spending for travel, equipment and
debt service were down.

The Education Trust Fund (ETF) is the largest governmental fund of the State. Revenues credited to the ETF are used for the support,
maintenance, and development of public education in Alabama, debt service and capital improvements related to educational facilities,
and other functions related to educating the State’s citizens. Programs and agencies supported by the ETF include K-12 education,
public library services, performing and fine arts, scholarship programs, the State’s education regulatory departments, and two and four-
year colleges and universities. Funding from the ETF is also provided to non-state agencies that provide educational services to the
people of Alabama, including the arts, disease counseling and education, and youth development. Various tax sources are allocated to
the ETF, the largest of which are income tax, sales tax, utility tax, and use tax. Tax revenues from the State’s economy for fiscal year
2008 were up approximately $21 million as compared to fiscal year 2007, a less than one percent increase. Sales and use tax revenues
were down by $65 million, individual income tax revenues were up by $90 million and corporate income tax revenues were down by
$31 million. Expenditures, as limited by the budget, were up 10 percent, or $571 million, as the State used a portion of the large surplus
left from last year’s budget. A large portion of the increase, $350 million was for financial assistance for local school systems.
Included in that amount was a pay raise for teachers and support personnel. Because spending increased at a much larger rate than
revenue growth, the balance of cash and cash equivalents in the ETF decreased $275 million to $66 million and the fund balance
decreased $342 million to $187 million. The ETF had transfers in of $440 million, an increase of $440 million due to a transfer of funds
from the ETF Proration Prevention Account during fiscal year 2008. The ETF transferred out $528 million, with the largest of these
transfers going to the Alabama College System, in the amount of $462 million, to supplement operations.
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The Alabama Trust Fund consists of income from the sale or lease of rights for offshore exploration and drilling for oil and gas off the
Alabama coast. Investment income is used to support the General Fund, Forever Wild Land Trust, and a variety of state and local
capital projects and debt service. Revenues from royalties and other payments related to the production of oil and gas increased by $108
million in 2008. Amendment 666 directs the Alabama Trust Fund Board of Trustees to transfer 35 percent of the oil and gas royalties
received in a fiscal year to the Alabama Capital Improvement Fund and the County and Municipal Government Capital Improvement
Trust Fund. Another one percent is entitled to the Division of Lands of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources.
Investment income declined from $315 million gain to $271 million loss, a decrease of $586 million. During the 2008 fiscal year, the
amount constitutionally reserved for Trust Capital declined by $190 million, a 7 percent decrease.

Medicaid accounts for the portion of the Medicaid program that is funded by Federal revenues and other non-state revenue sources.
Federal revenues increased 2 percent, or $52 million. Overall, revenues were down 3 percent, or $105 million. Expenditures declined 4
percent or $168 million with the largest decrease being $233 million less in hospital care programs with the biggest portion being due to
$151 million decrease in program inpatient and outpatient enhancement payments. Nursing Home Care declined $114 million with $47
million being due to less program enhancement payments in 2008. All other programs increased with the largest increases being $51
million in pharmaceutical programs, $37 million in physician care programs and $30 million in mental health waiver programs. Total
fund balance for Medicaid decreased by $77 million to a deficit of $78 million.

The Public Road and Bridge Fund is the general operating fund of the Department of Transportation (DOT) and receives all state
revenues for that department, all federal aid reimbursements, and all miscellaneous receipts. Amendment No. 23 (as amended by
Amendment No. 354) to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 provides that monies derived from any fee, excise or license taxes levied
by the State on motor fuels shall be expended for the cost of construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of public highways
and bridges; the cost of highway rights-of-way; the payment of highway obligations; the cost of traffic regulations; and the expense of
enforcing state traffic and motor vehicle laws. Federal revenues increased by 26 percent, or $176 million over 2007. Expenditures rose
by 3 percent, or $34 million. The fund balance increased by $43 million to a total fund balance of $520 million. $54 million of that
fund balance is committed in the form of encumbrances for various contracts and purchase orders, $29 million is in inventory of
materials on hand, and $43 million is reserved by statute for replacement of equipment. The remaining $394 million is unreserved but
the management of the DOT plans to use the money to cover commitments already made for construction and maintenance contracts.

The Public Welfare Trust Fund accounts for the administration of a broad range of social and protective service programs that provide
financial assistance to individuals. This is the major operating fund of the Department of Human Resources. 85 percent of the funding
is from federal funds, but is supplemented by whiskey tax and the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board profits, sales tax,
franchise tax, and beer tax. Over $1.3 billion was spent in the fund in 2008, but the fund balance at year end is a mere $36 million, the
same as 2007. The low fund balance is normal for this fund, since the Federal Cash Management Improvement Act does not allow the
State to draw money and hold it for more than a few days.

Only Medicaid had a negative fund balance at September 30, 2008. This is typical for the State’s major governmental funds because the
fiscally conservative nature of the State’s controls generally results in positive fund balances. Constitutional Amendment 26 requires the
State to have on hand at year end in each budgeted fund enough cash to cover all outstanding warrants and any remaining unspent
obligations (encumbrances and accounts payable). Medicaid often has a negative fund balance because GAAP requires the accrual of
claims payable and the related federal receivables but not the State matching amounts which will come from next year’s budget. The
accrual of taxes receivable in the General Fund and Education Trust Fund almost always assures a positive fund balance. The Public
Road and Bridge Fund retains enough cash to cover their outstanding construction contracts and commitments so that fund always has a
large fund balance.

Proprietary Funds

The State’s proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. During the fiscal year, total net assets for all enterprise funds increased by $70 million. The net assets of
the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund decreased by $48 million in fiscal year 2008. Unemployment benefits payments
increased by $81 million because of a gradual rise in the unemployment rate from 3.5 percent in September 2007 to 5.4 percent in
September 2008. The net assets of the State Port Authority increased by $26 million. This was partly due to $16 million in capital
contributions and payments from the Capital Improvement Trust Fund (a non-major special revenue fund). Operating revenues were up
substantially, to $125 million from $110 million the prior year, a 14 percent increase. The Alabama College System’s net assets
increased $91 million in 2008, primarily because of larger appropriations from the Education Trust Fund which are reported as transfers
in. However, the salaries increased because of legislatively mandated employee pay raises of 7 percent. The net assets of the Alcoholic
Beverage Control Board’s increased by $1 million in fiscal year 2008, resulting in a $4 million deficit. The Board is required by law to
distribute all of its profits and cannot own real property; therefore, net assets generally will remain negative.
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Budgetary Highlights

General Fund

The original budget for the General Fund was increased by a net of $26 million during fiscal year 2008. Expenditures were increased by
$14 million and Transfers Out increased by $12 million, and the increases and decreases are reflected in the final budget on the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule. Conditional and other appropriations were approximately $34 million. Conditional amounts are not
included in the budget until the conditions have been met. There were $4 million of conditional appropriations released during the
fiscal year. The Department of Finance received a conditional appropriation in the amount of $1 million for its annual budget to be used
for Smart Business Systems. Smart Business Systems is designed to improve planning, accountability, and performance measurement.
The annual budget was decreased by $15 million as a result of capital project appropriations including $14 million for the Department of
Corrections. The Department of Corrections and the Department of Agriculture and Industries received supplemental appropriations of
$5 million and $1 million, respectively. Also, the Department of Corrections received another appropriation for the sale of land in the
amount of $17 million. These funds for the Department of Corrections were needed because of the conditions of the overcrowded prison
system. Some expenditures are required by law to be fully funded, and estimated amounts are approved in the General Fund
appropriation bill. Increases to these estimated amounts do not require a new bill and are included as other appropriations. Transfers out

include an increase in the appropriation for indigent defense in the amount of $10 million. Emergency appropriations of $3 million are
included in the original budget and are included in the budgeted amounts as other on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule. Also, a
conditional amount of $2 million was released as an emergency appropriation. Emergency appropriations cannot exceed two percent of
the total amount appropriated. Allotments from the emergency appropriations including the conditional amount totaled approximately
$5 million to various agencies in fiscal year 2008. On a budgetary basis, General Fund expenditures and other uses exceeded revenues
and other sources by $21 million. However, on a GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) basis, General Fund expenditures
and other uses exceeded revenues and other sources by $24 million. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule in Required Supplementary
Information reconciles these amounts and lists the accounting basis differences.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2008, the State had invested $19.3 billion, net of accumulated depreciation, in a broad range of capital assets
(see the table below). Depreciation charges for the fiscal year totaled $129 million.

Capital Assets as of September 30

(Amounts in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 225,088 $ 179,045 $ 64,661 $ 62,763 $ 289,749 $ 241,808
Construction In Progress 149,301 133,247 281,364 249,717 430,665 382,964
Historical Exhibits 2,658 2,658 2,350 2,350 5,008 5,008
Construction In Progress - Infrastructure 4,712,849 4,399,528 - 4,712,849 4,399,528
Infrastructure 12,092,320 11,932,373 - - 12,092,320 11,932,373
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 17,182,216 16,646,851 348,375 314,830 17,530,591 16,961,681
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings 1,089,379 1,050,204 1,216,778 1,098,196 2,306,157 2,148,400
Machinery & Equipment 581,419 590,565 448,729 411,176 1,030,148 1,001,741
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 1,670,798 1,640,769 1,665,507 1,509,372 3,336,305 3,150,141
Less Accumulated Depreciation 848,281 868,643 675,245 630,825 1,523,526 1,499,468
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 822,517 772,126 990,262 878,547 1,812,779 1,650,673
Capital Assets, Net $ 18,004,733 $ 17,418,977 $ 1,338,637 $ 1,193,377 $ 19,343,370 $ 18,612,354
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As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted the modified approach to reporting roadway and bridge infrastructure
assets. Under the modified approach, depreciation is not recorded. Infrastructure costs that result in an increase in the capacity or an
improvement in the efficiency of the infrastructure network are capitalized and added to the historical cost of the assets. Costs that
allow the infrastructure network to be used efficiently over the expected useful life of the assets are expensed as general maintenance
costs. Certain maintenance costs that extend the useful life of the assets but do not increase capacity or efficiency are classified as
preservation costs. Preservation costs are expensed and reported in lieu of a charge for depreciation expense.

Extensive project documentation is required to meet various federal and state guidelines concerning the construction of infrastructure.
The completeness of this documentation affects the timing of project capitalization. The State capitalizes infrastructure when all costs
for a project are incurred and all project documentation is satisfactorily completed, filed, and accepted with the appropriate entities.
Projects that meet the cost and documentation criteria are closed, and appropriate entries are made to adjust the Infrastructure
Construction in Progress and Infrastructure asset accounts annually. Due to the documentation requirements, there can be substantial
time lags between the date a project is put into service on the State’s roadway network and the date the project is capitalized. A
significant portion of Infrastructure Construction in Progress consists of projects that have been put into service and maintenance costs
could have been incurred.

The State uses the International Roughness Index (IRI) to measure and monitor pavement conditions. The IRI is a standard representing
the perceived smoothness of pavements while traveling in passenger cars. A lower IRI measurement represents a smoother condition of
pavement. The United States Department of Transportation developed suggested values for IRI of <60 inches/mile to >220 inches/mile
to grade the smoothness condition of the roadway. A range of 60 to 94 is considered “Good” condition, with negligible maintenance
required, and a range of 95-119 for Interstate Highways or 95-170 for non-interstate highways is considered “Fair”, requiring routine
maintenance such as pavement patching. The weighted average rating of Alabama’s roads was 77.19, which exceeds the State’s goal.

The State maintains 5,362 bridges and culverts. The State rates the major structural components and deck area of the bridge or culvert
on a scale of one to ten and assigns a weighted rating to the bridge or culvert. The State expects those bridges and culverts to be
maintained at a rating within the range of 5 - 6.99, which is considered “satisfactory,” meaning the structural elements are sound but
have minor deterioration. The actual weighted average rating for the most recent condition assessment was 6.67, in the upper end of the
satisfactory range, unchanged from the previous year.

In fiscal years 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the State estimated it would need to spend $320.0, $277.7, $247.1, $247.1, and $205.0
million, respectively, to preserve and maintain all roadway assets and $10.0 million in each year to preserve all bridge assets at or above
the “Established Condition Levels” presented above. In fiscal year 2008, the State spent $265,160,000 for roadway preservation and
$22,434,000 for bridge preservation. In the next fiscal year, the Alabama Department of Transportation estimates that it will need to
spend approximately $310,027,000 to preserve all roadway assets and approximately $10,000,000 to preserve all bridge assets at or
above the “Established Condition Levels” presented above. Even though actual spending for bridge preservation fell below estimated,
condition levels are expected to continue to meet or exceed the “Established Condition Levels™.

More detailed information about the State’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 to the financial statements and in the Required
Supplementary Information section.

Long-term Debt

The only method under which general obligation debt can be incurred is by amendment to the Constitution of Alabama of 1901. The
debt prohibition does not apply to debts incurred by separate public corporations functioning as State instrumentalities. The revenue
bonds issued by these corporations are limited obligations of the corporation, not general obligations of the State, and the full faith and
credit of the State is not pledged for their repayment. Certain revenues, usually earmarked taxes or revenues generated from the project
financed, are pledged for the payment of the debt. Some of these corporations are blended with the primary government and some are
reported discretely. The State and its component units issue serial and term bonds and capital appreciation bonds. Alabama has
traditionally received high bond ratings from both Standard and Poor’s Corporation and Moody’s Investors Service. Currently, the
exception is the upper medium bond ratings for the Tobacco Settlement Revenue Bonds issued by the Alabama Twenty-first Century
Authority, a component unit of the State.
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Outstanding Bonded Debt as of September 30
(Amounts in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General Obligation Bonds § 721,145 $ 773,253 $ - $ - § 721,145 $ 773,253
Revenue Bonds 323,483 333,438 612,959 572,782 936,442 906,220
Total $ 1,044,628 $ 1,106,691 $ 612,959 $ 572,782 $ 1,657,587 $ 1,679,473

The Alabama Judicial Building Authority issued $22,660,000 in refunding bonds and $10,000,000 in new bonds. The State Port
Authority issued $61,300,000 in refunding bonds and $50,000,000 in new bonds. The Alabama College System issued $4,559,000 in
new bonds. More detailed information regarding the State’s long-term debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Governor’s Deficit Prevention Plan includes a hiring freeze on state workers, a freeze on state employee merit pay raises, stopping
new vehicle purchases, limiting equipment purchases and professional service contracts, and curtailing travel by state employees. This
plan includes fiscal year 2009 budget cuts of ten percent for various state agencies. Proration has been implemented for the fiscal year
2009 Education Trust Fund budget. Some of the education rainy-day account in the Alabama Trust Fund has been transferred to the
Education Trust Fund and effectively lessened the impact of proration from 12.5 percent to 9 percent. Tax collections are down and the
future economic condition is uncertain for the nation. This economic recession will continue to impact Alabama. The State’s seasonally
adjusted unemployment rate, at 7.8 percent in January 2009, increased from December 2008’s rate of 6.5 percent and was above the
year-ago rate of 3.9 percent.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the State of Alabama’s finances for all those with an interest in the
government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to: Office of the State Comptroller, Financial Reporting Section, RSA Union, Suite 206, Montgomery,
AL 36130-2602.
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Basic Financial Statements
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Internal Balances
Due from Primary Government
Due from Component Units
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Taxes Receivable
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Mortgages, Notes, and Loans Receivable
Securities Lending Collateral
Inventory
Restricted Assets
Other Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets Not Depreciated
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Warrants Payable
Salaries Payable
Due to Primary Government
Due to Component Units
Accounts Payable
Interest Payable
Due to Other Governments
Securities Lending Obligation
Unearned Revenue
Amounts Held in Custody for Others
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Permanent - Expendable
Permanent - Non-expendable
Unemployment Compensation
Forever Wild Stewardship Account
Alabama Trust Capital
Education
Health
Social Services
Transportation
General Government
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Units
$ 2,287,271 $ 696,986 $ 2,984,257 1,952,406
3,335,540 234,094 3,569,634 6,022,232
14,085 (14,085) - -
- - - 52,683
53,530 - 53,530 -
130,444 99,289 229,733 705,419
492,810 2,401 495,211 752,533
624,665 - 624,665 150,143
28,406 4,984 33,390 24,404
49 - 49 663,066
441,151 1,145 442,296 30,133
47,747 39,423 87,170 34,691
1,465 - 1,465 100,323
11,262 19,645 30,907 151,515
822,517 990,262 1,812,779 3,748,768
17,182,216 348,375 17,530,591 883,753
25,473,158 2,422,519 27,895,677 15,272,069
22,388 920 23,308 3,488
174,655 7,401 182,056 23,575
- - - 53,530
47,271 5,412 52,683 -
868,204 72,956 941,160 463,581
7,363 7,387 14,750 75,444
239,752 2,124 241,876 94,929
441,151 1,145 442,296 30,133
19,775 63,711 83,486 514,520
36,234 12,906 49,140 271,858
88,302 80,099 168,401 699,190
1,550,419 590,330 2,140,749 6,563,186
3,495,514 844,391 4,339,905 8,793,434
17,576,424 753,665 18,330,089 2,644,931
- 44,572 44,572 852,173
31,541 5,703 37,244 1,047,637
- 391,108 391,108 -
18,067 - 18,067 -
2,595,847 - 2,595,847 -
594,672 - 594,672 -
37,941 - 37,941 -
84,757 - 84,757 -
454,523 - 454,523 -
349,003 - 349,003 -
28,524 38,283 66,807 615,161
34,749 - 34,749 -
395,091 - 395,091 28,780
(223,495) 344,797 121,302 1,289,953
$ 21,977,644 $ 1,578,128 $ 23,555,772 6,478,635

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
Economic Development and Regulation
Education and Cultural Resources
Natural Resources and Recreation
Health
Social Services
Protection of Persons and Property
Transportation
General Government
Debt Service - Interest and Other Charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Unemployment Compensation
State Port Authority
Alabama College System
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government

Component Units:
Public School and College Authority
Mental Health
Housing Finance Authority
Water Pollution Control Authority
University of Alabama
Auburn University
University of South Alabama

Public Education Employees' Health Insurance

State Employees' Health Insurance Board
Nonmajor Component Units
Total Component Units

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 281,176 $ 59,859 $ 21,220 0
7,198,488 12,131 832,615 9,296
135,368 164,709 33,323 20
5,144,802 204,561 4,085,016 -
1,743,177 6,590 1,307,374 25
1,103,566 230,745 237,255 -
1,094,598 198,669 30,131 864,770
1,021,561 573,465 123,165 -
57,253 - - -
17,779,989 1,450,729 6,670,099 874,111
330,068 227,906 42,644 -
127,200 132,481 203 6,030
812,195 155,559 260,668 7,687
249,389 252,265 352 -
47,168 47,019 1,472 -
1,566,020 815,230 305,339 13,717
19,346,009 2,265,959 6,975,438 887,828
374,079 - 4 -
900,386 9,229 67,067 -
73,103 33,187 - -
31,281 20,088 15,085 -
3,023,329 1,724,920 707,785 73,630
806,326 356,726 201,141 23,507
580,148 368,876 31,033 19,268
700,506 657,667 8 -
383,392 364,740 16 -
1,067,496 538,522 258,658 7,747
7,940,046 4,073,955 1,280,797 124,152

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales and Use Taxes
Income Taxes
Motor Fuels Taxes
Utility Taxes
Insurance Premium Tax
Property Tax
Liquor Taxes
Tobacco and Cigarette Taxes
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Contributions to Permanent Funds and Endowments

Payments from State of Alabama
Special Items
Transfers

Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, October 1, 2007, as Restated

Net Assets, September 30, 2008
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Units
(200,097) $ 0 (200,097) $ 0
(6,344,446) - (6,344,446) -
62,684 - 62,684 -
(855,225) - (855,225) -
(429,188) - (429,188) -
(635,566) - (635,566) -
(1,028) - (1,028) -
(324,931) - (324,931) -
(57,253) - (57,253) -
(8,785,050) 0 (8,785,050) 0
- (59,518) (59,518) -
- 11,514 11,514 -
- (388,281) (388,281) -
- 3,228 3,228 -
- 1,323 1,323
0 (431,734) (431,734) 0
(8,785,050) (431,734) (9,216,784) 0
- - - (374,075)
- - - (824,090)
- - - (39,916)
- - - 3,892
- - - (516,994)
- - - (224,952)
- - - (160,971)
- - - (42,831)
- - - (18,636)
- - - (262,569)
0 0 0 (2,461,142)
2,261,452 - 2,261,452 -
3,512,255 - 3,512,255 -
550,811 - 550,811 -
539,337 - 539,337 128,236
288,341 - 288,341 4,525
314,181 - 314,181 -
122,195 9,912 132,107 13,930
140,786 - 140,786 3,050
(141,251) 34,631 (106,620) (163,598)
738,746 13,257 752,003 82,505
- 88 88 34,111
- - - 2,267,546
- - - 26,067
(444,314) 444,314 - -
7,882,539 502,202 8,384,741 2,396,372
(902,511) 70,468 (832,043) (64,770)
22,880,155 1,507,660 24,387,815 6,543,405
21,977,644 $ 1,578,128 23,555,772 $ 6,478,635
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BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds

September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Units
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Taxes Receivable
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Mortgages, Notes, and Loans Receivable
Securities Lending Collateral
Inventory
Restricted Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Warrants Payable
Salaries Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Units
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
Securities Lending Obligation
Deferred Revenue
Amounts Held in Custody for Others
Compensated Absences
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for:

Encumbrances
Inventory
Highway Equipment Replacement
Court Settlements
Donor Restrictions
Education Rainy Day Account
Forever Wild Stewardship Account
Alabama Trust Capital
Local Government
Capital Improvement Trust
Permanent Trust Principal

Unreserved, Designated for Capital Projects

Unreserved, Designated for Debt Service
Unreserved, Designated
Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Permanent Funds
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Public
Education Road and
General Trust Alabama Medicaid Bridge
Fund Fund Trust Fund Fund
345,835 $ 65,799 154,433 8,518 $ 453,282
- - 2,955,890 - 49,502
13,401 908 - 10,449 4,401
72 2 - 12,470 -
205 102 104,561 1,507 4,082
2 3 - 226,598 159,293
215,037 179,146 - - 23,878
406 - 25,914 - -
21,696 4,493 314,838 532 29,802
3,772 - - - 29,000
600,426 $ 250,453 3,555,636 260,074 $ 753,240
1,426 $ 7,178 0 187 $ 5,140
57,238 8,862 - 2,142 22,362
4,341 7,784 94 27,024 2,832
452 21 - 38,496 89
19,277 29,479 252,954 269,947 139,421
6,241 5,680 - 3 13,360
21,696 4,493 314,838 532 29,802
107,012 - 4,912 - 5,701
393 - - 2 14,228
656 107 - 21 259
218,732 63,604 572,798 338,354 233,194
1,531 2,720 93 4,188 53,737
3,772 - - - 29,000
- - - - 43,544
- - 248,000 - -
- - 18,067 - -
- - 2,595,847 - -
- - 24,166 - -
- - 96,665 - -
376,391 - - - -
- 184,129 - (82,468) 393,765
381,694 186,849 2,982,838 (78,280) 520,046
600,426 $ 250,453 3,555,636 260,074 $ 753,240

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Public

Welfare Nonmajor Total
Trust Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

86,115 1,110,889 $ 2,224,871
- 255,841 3,261,233
16,307 41,906 87,372
202 2,471 15,217
437 7,141 118,035

- 106,914 492,810
46,535 160,069 624,665
- 1,630 27,950

- 49 49

5,221 61,138 437,720
- 1,041 33,813

- 1,465 1,465
154,817 1,750,554 $ 7,325,200
577 7,782 $ 22,290
21,923 59,476 172,003
10,072 44,234 96,381
128 1,693 40,879
40,279 110,067 861,424
827 213,438 239,549
5,221 61,138 437,720
36,751 122,333 276,709
2,766 18,845 36,234
301 593 1,937
118,845 639,599 2,185,126
4,853 30,032 97,154
- 1,041 33,813

- - 435544

- 7,876 7,876

- 33 33

- - 248,000

- - 18,067

- - 2,595,847

- - 24,166

- - 96,665

- 31,540 31,540

- 185,790 185,790

- 4,630 4,630

- 702 702

- - 376,391
31,119 824,373 1,350,918
- 24,938 24,938
35,972 1,110,955 5,140,074
154,817 1,750,554 $ 7,325,200
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Land 224,567
Historical Exhibits 2,657
Construction in progress 110,240
Construction in progress - Infrastructure 4,712,849
Infrastructure 12,092,320
Buildings 957,699
Equipment 544,845
Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings (402,670)
Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment (309,422)

Some of the State's revenues will be collected after year-end, but
are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures, and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities, such as insurance and information technology,
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capital Leases, Notes, and Mortgages (41,845)
Compensated Absences (286,119)
Claims and Judgments (28,598)
Due to Component Units (6,365)
Other Post-Employment Benefits (175,765)

Long-term bonded debt is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore is not reported in the funds. Unamortized discounts, unamortized
premiums, unamortized loss, deferred debt financing costs, and interest payable
are not reported in the funds. However, these amounts are included in the
Statement of Net Assets. This is the total effect of these balances on the statement.

General Obligation Bonds Payable (705,480)
Revenue Bonds Payable (236,020)
Unamortized Premiums (18,895)
Unamortized Discounts 482
Unamortized Loss 1,486
Deferred Debt Financing Costs 758
Accrued Interest Payable (7,363)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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17,933,085

256,934

151,275

(538,692)

(965,032)

$21,977,644
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

Public
Education Road and
General Trust Alabama Medicaid Bridge
Fund Fund Trust Fund Fund
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,159,828 $ 5878913 $ 0 $ 0 $ 352,354
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 159,733 615 - - 143,368
Fines, Forfeits, and Court Settlements 116,128 - - 5,196 -
Investment Income 90,181 - (271,499) 182 1,787
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 3,378 596 - 3,010,212 857,679
Other Revenues 18,798 32,710 356,396 691,357 37,390
Total Revenues 1,548,046 5,912,834 84,897 3,706,947 1,392,578
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic Development and Regulation 11,712 - - - -
Education and Cultural Resources 10,630 6,005,717 - - -
Natural Resources and Recreation 6,283 - 344 - -
Health 658,170 49,332 - 3,647,533 -
Social Services 15,113 35,505 - - -
Protection of Persons and Property 580,773 50,784 - - -
Transportation - - - - 1,321,880
General Government 331,960 20,065 41,503 - -
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Debt Service - Principal Retirement 691 2,919 - - 6,263
Debt Service - Interest and Other Charges 152 1,442 - - 3,034
Total Expenditures 1,615,484 6,165,764 41,847 3,647,533 1,331,177
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (67,438) (252,930) 43,050 59,414 61,401
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 286,509 439,654 3,786 128,555 17,867
Transfers Out (243,280) (528,266) (366,652) (265,355) (46,674)
Bonds Issued - - - - -
Refunding Bonds Issued - - - - -
Current Refunding to Bondholders - - - - -
Capital Leases - - - - -
Debt Issuance Premiums - - - - -
Insurance Recovery Proceeds 2 - - - 2,009
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 43,231 (88,612) (362,866) (136,800) (26,798)
Net Change in Fund Balances (24,207) (341,542) (319,816) (77,386) 34,603
Fund Balances, October 1, 2007, as Restated 404,781 528,391 3,302,654 (894) 477,516
Increase (Decrease) in Inventory 1,120 - - - 7,927
Fund Balances, September 30, 2008 $ 381694 $ 186849 $ 2982838 $ (78,280) $ 520,046

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Public

Welfare Nonmajor Total
Trust Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$ 140,536 $ 917,465 $ 8,449,096
860 342,959 647,535
- 26,706 148,030
92 36,910 (142,347)
1,036,110 1,789,094 6,697,069
43,848 343,411 1,523,910
1,221,446 3,456,545 17,323,293
- 72,915 84,627
- 1,150,026 7,166,373
- 188,098 194,725
- 770,452 5,125,487
1,335,620 331,285 1,717,523
- 394,105 1,025,662
- 234,450 1,556,330
510 593,264 987,302
- 272,032 272,032
2,456 58,884 71,213
1,217 55,669 61,514
1,339,803 4,121,180 18,262,788
(118,357) (664,635) (939,495)
192,066 773,381 1,841,818
(74,005) (765,681) (2,289,913)
- 10,000 10,000
- 22,660 22,660
- (23,625) (23,625)
- 171 171
- 1,210 1,210
13 2,555 4,579
118,074 20,671 (433,100)
(283) (643,964) (1,372,595)
36,255 1,755,233 6,503,936
- (314) 8,733
$ 35,972 $ 1,110,955 $ 5,140,074
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STATE OF ALABAMA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

September 30, 2008
(Amounts in Thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances for Governmental Funds ($1,372,595)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital Outlay 674,041
Depreciation Expense (68,490)
605,551
In the Statement of Activities, only the gain (loss) on the sale of assets is reported, whereas in the
governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the assets sold. (24,978)
Some capital additions were financed through capital leases. In the governmental funds, a capital
lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the statement of net assets, the
lease obligation is reported as a liability. (171)
In the Statement of Activities, the change in the balance of inventories is expensed, whereas in
the governmental funds, the change in the balance of inventories is adjusted to reserved
fund balance. 8,733
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. (3,348)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance and information technology, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (4,127)
Capital asset reassignments for the general government have not been reported in fund financial
statements.
Capital asset transfers to the general government 411
Capital asset transfers from the general government 17)
394
Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds by issuing debt
which increases long-term debt in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
debt in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount proceeds exceed repayments.
Bond proceeds (32,660)
Bond premium (1,210)
Repayment of bond principal 59,703
Current refunding to bondholders 23,625
Accrued interest 7,577
57,035
Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either increase or decrease long-term
liabilities reported on the Statement of Net Assets and have been eliminated from the Statement
of Activities.
Capital lease payments 11,512
Compensated absences payments (15,647)
Other post-employment benefit payments (175,765)
Claims and judgments 10,886
Other debt payments 9
(169,005)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities ($902,511)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments, Short-term
Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Units
Accounts Receivable
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
Securities Lending Collateral
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Investments, Long-term
Due From Other Funds, Noncurrent
Due From Component Unit, Noncurrent
Other Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets Not Depreciated
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Warrants Payable
Salaries Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Units
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
Interest Payable
Claims Payable
Unearned Revenue
Funds Held in Escrow
Compensated Absences
Securities Lending Obligation
Notes and Capital Leases Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Total Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Claims Payable
Unearned Revenue, Noncurrent
Compensated Absences
Other Post-employment Benefits
Notes and Capital Leases Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Other Long-term Liabilities
Total Long-term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Permanent - Expendable
Permanent - Non-expendable
Unemployment Compensation
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Alcoholic
Unemployment State Alabama Beverage Nonmajor
Compensation Port College Control Enterprise
Trust Authority System Board Funds
$ 391,310 18,752 255,857 $ 15,169 15,898
- 41,296 131,271 - -
490 4,194 - 5 -
4,053 22,878 72,279 34 45
4,984 - - - -
- 2,401 - - -
- 5,156 8,610 24,813 844
5 - - 1,015 125
- 2,099 - - 300
400,842 96,776 468,017 41,036 17,212
- 45,433 16,094 - -
- 6,686 10,470 90 -
- 342,176 637,644 7,647 2,795
- 239,864 105,881 - 2,630
0 634,159 770,089 7,737 5,425
400,842 730,935 1,238,106 48,773 22,637
- - - 907 13
- 3,540 - 3,819 42
158 - - 18,556 67
- - - 5,190 222
8,765 22,719 30,447 10,776 242
731 - - 1,392 1
- 7,387 - - -
- 454 - - 3,508
- - 59,156 58 413
75 - 12,831 - -
- - 2,149 55 -
5 - - 1,015 125
- - 2,953 - -
- 56,830 14,150 - -
9,734 90,930 121,686 41,768 4,633
- 1,361 - - -
- 4,084 - - -
- - 16,942 6,469 27
- 3,460 - 4,735 90
- - 11,305 - 1,965
- 290,584 251,395 - -
- 1,949 48 - -
0 301,438 279,690 11,204 2,082
9,734 392,368 401,376 52,972 6,715
- 246,469 496,090 7,647 3,460
- - 44,572 - -
- - 5,703 - -
391,108 - - - -
- 38,283 - - -
- 53,815 290,365 (11,846) 12,462
$ 391,108 338,567 836,730 $ (4,199) 15,922

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Gowvernmental Activities

Total Internal

Enterprise Service

Funds Funds
696,986 $ 62,400
172,567 19,511
4,689 13,444
- 1,780
99,289 12,347
4,984 456
2,401 -
39,423 13,934
1,145 3,431
2,399 9,689
1,023,883 136,992
61,527 54,796
- 10,826
- 36,533
17,246 815
990,262 32,065
348,375 39,582
1,417,410 174,617
2,441,293 311,609
920 98
7,401 2,652
18,781 1,166
5,412 27
72,949 6,728
2,124 203
7,387 -
3,962 14,994
59,627 -
12,906 -
2,204 1
1,145 3,431
2,953 89
70,980 6,750
268,751 36,139
1,361 37,485
4,084 -
23,438 4,734
8,285 2,526
13,270 -
541,979 79,450
1,997 -
594,414 124,195
863,165 160,334
753,666 (3,615)
44,572 -
5,703 -
391,108 -
38,283 -
- 25,476
344,796 129,414
1,578,128 $ 151,275
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Goods and Services
Investment Earnings
Premiums and Contributions
Rents and Leases
Interest from Mortgages and Loans Receivable
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits
Utilities and Communications
Professional Services
Supplies, Materials, and Operating Expenses
Interest
Depreciation
Claims and Benefits
Operations and Maintenance
General and Administrative
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Taxes
Grants
Investment Income
Insurance Recoveries
Other Nonoperating Revenues
Interest Expense
Other Nonoperating Expenses
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers
Capital Contributions

Contributions to Endowments

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Total Net Assets, October 1, 2007, as Restated

Total Net Assets, September 30, 2008

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Alcoholic
Unemployment State Alabama Beverage Nonmajor
Compensation Port College Control Enterprise
Trust Authority System Board Funds
$ 0 $ 125068 $ 155559 $ 248336 $ 29,251
- - - - 12
218,253 - - - 16,712
- - - - 874
218,253 125,068 155,559 248,336 46,849
- - 487,799 48,747 883
- - 26,183 2,552 128
- - - 1,342 449
- 2,314 172,326 182,401 23,636
- - 12,730 - -
- 20,664 28,257 3,099 272
326,213 - - - 21,226
- 72,177 - - -
- 15,749 - - -
- - 78,554 11,248 212
326,213 110,904 805,849 249,389 46,806
(107,960) 14,164 (650,290) (1,053) 43
- - - 9,912 4,691
42,644 203 260,668 352 1,472
19,956 4,354 10,082 - 227
- 7,411 - - -
9,653 - 7,270 5,044 365
- (14,317) - - (63)
(3,855) (1,979) (6,346) - (299)
68,398 (4,328) 271,674 15,308 6,393
(39,562) 9,836 (378,616) 14,255 6,436
- 6,030 7,687 - -
- - 88 - -
3,419 10,157 461,899 410 4
(11,927) (44) - (13,516) (6,088)
(48,070) 25,979 91,058 1,149 352
439,178 312,588 745,672 (5,348) 15,570
$ 391,108 $ 338567 $ 836,730 $ (4199) $ 15,922
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Gowvernmental Activities

Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds

$ 558,214 $ 78,071

12 2,063
234,965 53,073
874 17,251

- 1,391
794,065 151,849
537,429 33,856
28,863 21,789
1,791 18,249
380,677 37,266
12,730 3,307
52,292 8,139
347,439 24,833
72,177 -
15,749 -
90,014 12,637
1,539,161 160,076
(745,096) (8,227)
14,603 -
305,339 498
34,619 694
7,411 -
22,332 902
(14,380) a7
(12,479) (2,057)
357,445 20
(387,651) (8,207)
13,717 -
88 -
475,889 8,257
(31,575) (4,177)
70,468 (4,127)
1,507,660 155,402

$ 1,578,128 $ 151,275




STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customer & User Charges
Receipts from Interfund Services
Receipts from Operating Grants
Receipts from Interfund Reimbursements
Receipts from Other Operating Activities
Payments for Goods Held for Resale
Payments for Other Goods & Services
Payments for Employees Services
Payments for Taxes, Fines, Penalties, & Similar Fees
Payments for Interfund Services
Payments for Other Operating Activities
Payments for Claims
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Receipts from Noncapital Financing Grants & Donations
Transfers from Other Funds for Noncapital Financing
Receipts from Noncapital Financing Taxes
Payments for Noncapital Financing Grants & Donations
Transfers to Other Funds for Noncapital Financing

Net Cash Provided By (Used In)

Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from Revenue Bonds & Other Capital Debt
Receipts from Capital Grants & Contributions
Receipts from Sale of Capital Assets & Insurance Proceeds
Payments to Acquire, Construct, & Improve Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds & Other Capital Debt
Lease Payments to Acquire and Improve Capital Assets
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds & Other Capital Debt

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Loan Payments Received
Receipts from Sales & Maturities of Investments

Receipts from Interest & Dividends on Investments & Loans

Purchase of Investments
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Balance as Restated, October 1, 2007

Cash Balance, September 30, 2008
Add: Warrants Payable
Cash and Cash Equivalents,

as Reported on Balance Sheet

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds

Alcoholic
Unemployment State Alabama Beverage Nonmajor
Compensation Port College Control Enterprise
Trust Authority System Board Funds
$ 225,500 110,111 119,710 245,439 $ 51,319
- - - 11 153
42,992 8,265 255,344 - -
4,765 - - - -
7 - 24,952 15,072 291
- - - (175,960) (21,743)
- (38,310) (182,827) (20,077) (25,201)
- (33,475) (487,798) (43,227) (1,097)
(2,154) - - - -
- - - (1,770) (143)
(400) - (81,211) (2,702) 17)
(329,533) - - - -
(58,823) 46,591 (351,830) 16,786 3,562
51 - 8,025 - 1,443
3,419 - 461,899 510 4
9,602 - - - -
(5,925) - (906) - -
(9,934) - - (13,516) (6,411)
(2,787) 0 469,018 (13,006) (4,964)
- 111,300 2,534 - 425
- 12,318 4,606 - -
- 9,193 1,136 74 21
- (115,086) (92,355) (4,780) (182)
- (60,465) (17,100) - -
- - - - (101)
- (8,347) (10,687) - (63)
0 (51,087) (111,866) (4,706) 100
- - 64,550 - -
- 52,320 - - -
20,434 4,354 9,848 - 239
- (40,897) (40,181) - -
20,434 15,777 34,217 0 239
(41,176) 11,281 39,539 (926) (1,063)
432,486 7,471 216,318 15,188 16,947
391,310 18,752 255,857 14,262 15,884
- - - 907 14
$ 391,310 18,752 255,857 15,169 $ 15,898

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Gowvernmental Activities

Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds
752,079 $ 54,543
164 115,627
306,601 -
4,765 -
40,322 6,240
(197,703) (17,920)
(266,415) (71,008)
(565,597) (30,914)
(2,154) (16)
(1,913) (6,788)
(84,330) (12,284)
(329,533) (33,467)
(343,714) 4,013
9,519 -
465,832 7,901
9,602 -
(6,831) -
(29,861) (134)
448,261 7,767
114,259 (4,545)
16,924 -
10,424 431
(212,403) (18,311)
(77,565) (1,180)
(101) -
(19,097) (4,594)
(167,559) (28,199)
64,550 -
52,320 443,288
34,875 6,330
(81,078) (439,657)
70,667 9,961
7,655 (6,458)
688,410 68,760
696,065 62,302
921 98
696,986 $ 62,400
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued from Previous Page)
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands) Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds
Alcoholic
Unemployment State Alabama Beverage Nonmajor
Compensation Port College Control Enterprise
Trust Authority System Board Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (L0ss) $ (107,960) $ 14164 $ (650,290) $ (1,053) $ 43
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Due from Other Funds - - - 3 5
Due from Component Units - - - - -
Accounts Receivable (1,266) (6,693) (3,234) 1,348 40
Inventory - 336 810 (3,634) (140)
Other Assets - 98 1,283 - -
Salaries Payable - - - 205 (91)
Due to Other Funds - - - 3,027 (153)
Due to Component Units - - - 128 -
Accounts Payable 8,282 9,132 2,531 (4,311) (360)
Due to Other Governments - - - (2,328) -
Claims Payable - - - - (874)
Unearned Revenue - - 1,813 (75) (13)
Amounts Held in Custody for Others (394) - (241) - -
Compensated Absences - - - 344 (219)
Other Post-employment Benefits - - - 4,735 85
Other Liabilities - 2,956 ?3) - 5
Investment Income - - - - 12)
Operating Interest Expense - - - - -
Depreciation - 20,664 28,257 3,099 272
Amortization Expense - 210 - - -
Nonoperating Revenues 42,515 - 267,265 15,298 4,986
Nonoperating Expenses - 5,724 (21) - (12)
Total Adjustments 49,137 32,427 298,460 17,839 3,519

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (58823) $ 46591 $ (351,830) $ 16,786  $ 3,562

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Increase (Decrease):
Transfers and Donations of Capital Assets - - - 153 -
Capital Assets Acquired by Capital Lease or Other Debt - - 4,609 - -
Disposals, Write-offs, and Other Reductions to Capital Asset - (3,600) (2,681) (1,943) (2,467)
Revenue Bond Amortizations and Other Debt Adjustments - - - - -
Interest Accruals and Other Adjustments (478) - - - -
Unrealized Gains (Losses) in Investment Fair Value - - (1,011) - -
Transfers In (Out) - - - 50 -

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Gowvernmental Activities

Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds
$ (745,096) $ (8,227)
8 2,244
- (645)
(9,805) 1,508
(2,628) (8,132)
1,381 (319)
114 110
2,874 (1,464)
128 (@)
15,274 247
(2,328) -
(874) 5,860
1,725 3
(635) 2
125 162
4,820 2,526
2,958 -
(12) (2,063)
- 3,307
52,292 8,139
210 -
330,064 756
5,691 -
401,382 12,240
$ (343,714) % 4,013
153 3,206
4,609 -
(10,691) (66,346)
- 37
(478) 690
(1,011) 2,765
50 3,687
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Fiduciary Funds

September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

Pension and Private-
Other Employee Purpose
Benefit Trust Agency
Trust Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 53598 $ 3,351 169,680
Investments
Time Deposits - 132 3,347
U.S. Treasury Securities 934,915 14,820 34,642
U.S. Agency Securities 914,895 21,275 -
State and Local Government Securities - 546 5,660
Mortgage Backed Securities 482,436 110,935 7,701
Corporate Stocks 12,610,262 321,699 -
Corporate Bonds 6,330,214 38,279 5,410
Real Estate 2,222,942 840 -
Commercial Paper 875,120 - -
International Stocks 3,673,518 103,769 -
International Bonds - 681 -
Mutual and Money Market Funds 234,859 563,852 527
Other 14 240 -
Receivables
Due from Other Funds - 32 58
Employer Contributions Receivable 90,920 - -
Member Contributions Receivable 41,323 - -
Accounts Receivable 7,712 68,080 64
Due from Other Governments 4,033 - -
Interest and Dividends Receivable 244,085 2,582 -
Securities Lending Collateral 2,748,924 87,159 2,309
Other Assets 593 - -
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 148,081 - -
Capital Assets Not Depreciated 8,810 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 31,627,254 1,338,272 229,398
LIABILITIES
Warrants Payable $ 38,536 $ 314 15,311
Salaries Payable 2,067 30 -
Due to Other Funds 1 92 -
Accounts Payable 3,318 63,321 616
Due to Other Governments - 25 3,377
Claims Payable 42,062 - -
Securities Lending Obligation 2,748,924 87,159 2,309
Deferred Revenue 323 - -
Amounts Held in Custody for Others 2 - 207,785
Compensated Absences 4,654 43 -
Other Post-employment Benefits 1,588 27 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,841,475 151,011 229,398
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Beneficiaries - 1,187,261 -
Held in Trust for OPEB Benefits 622,991 - -
Held in Trust for Pension and Other Employee Benefits 28,162,788 - -
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 28,785,779 $ 1,187,261 0

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

Pension and Private-
Other Employee Purpose
Benefit Trust
Trust Funds Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan members $ 740,216 $ 260,809
Employer 1,676,211 -
Medicare Part D Retiree Drug Subsidy 35,818 -
Total Contributions 2,452,245 260,809
Investment Earnings
Investment Interest and Dividends 1,127,518 63,923
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (6,219,837) (334,859)
Securities Lending Income 137,315 4,052
Total Investment Earnings (4,955,004) (266,884)
Less:
Investment Expense 9,781 -
Securities Lending Interest and Fees 102,376 3,489
Net Investment Income (5,067,161) (270,373)
Other Additions
Licenses and Fees 3,364 -
Miscellaneous 8,708 958
Total Other Additions 12,072 958
Total Additions (2,602,844) (8,606)
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments and Refunds 2,779,086 250,880
Administrative Expense 34,731 10,259
Transfers Out 1 691
Total Deductions 2,813,818 261,830
Changes in Net Assets (5,416,662) (270,436)
Net Assets Held in Trust
for Beneficiaries, October 1, 2007, as Restated 34,202,441 1,457,697
Net Assets Held in Trust
for Beneficiaries, September 30, 2008 $28,785,779 $ 1,187,261

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Component Units

September 30, 2008

(Amounts in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due from Primary Government
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Taxes Receivable
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Mortgages, Notes, and Loans Receivable
Securities Lending Collateral
Inventory
Restricted Assets
Other Assets
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets Not Depreciated
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Warrants Payable
Salaries Payable
Due to Primary Government
Accounts Payable
Interest Payable
Due to Other Governments
Securities Lending Obligation
Unearned Revenue
Amounts Held in Custody for Others
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due In More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Permanent - Expendable
Permanent - Non-expendable
Debt Service
Other Purposes
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Public Water

School and Housing Pollution University

College Mental Finance Control of
Authority Health Authority Authority Alabama
$ 1053872 $ 110045 $ 1892 $ 92,616  $ 85,652
- 1 1,053,809 113,226 2,393,230
- 45,015 - 6,365 -
- 24 - 2 388,287
- 4,210 - 516,891 -
30,515 119,628 - - -
- - 12,800 2,755 328
- - 462,971 - 61,739
1,023 6,279 - 54 -
- 2,161 - - 18,894
- 292 21,565 6,608 66,198
11,031 54,578 - 63 2,107,830
- 2,942 - - 414,739
1,096,441 345,175 1,553,037 738,580 5,536,897
179 1,175 - - -
- 14,183 - - -
- 12,968 - 645 -
- 62,825 1,283 634 257,779
34,384 168 20,505 2,351 -
- 5,186 - 47,783 26,192
1,023 6,279 - 54 -
4,586 - 14,100 446 208,789
- 3 200,993 105 16,474
130,720 4,987 286,086 30,145 30,748
2,304,622 42,400 792,670 364,440 1,207,729
2,475,514 150,174 1,315,637 446,603 1,747,711
11,031 44,610 - 63 1,350,261
- - - - 554,914
- - - - 533,950
- - 187,839 291,914 -
(1,390,104) 150,391 49,561 - 1,350,061
$(1,379,073) $ 195001 $ 237,400 $ 291977 $ 3,789,186

50



University Public State

of Education Employees' Nonmajor Total
Auburn South Employees' Health Component Component

University Alabama Health Insur Insurance Units Units
$ 51,557 38,602 $ 3223 % 6,735 $ 508,212 $ 1,952,406
1,242,297 586,093 73,716 184,085 375,775 6,022,232
- - 1 820 482 52,683
40,817 58,897 7,892 1,278 208,222 705,419
- - - - 231,432 752,533
- - - - - 150,143
4,204 - 103 1,068 3,146 24,404
46,156 5,724 - - 86,476 663,066
- - 220 18,763 3,794 30,133
3,724 - - - 9,912 34,691
- 95,893 - - 4,430 100,323
6,071 18,262 1,425 38 31,056 151,515
757,767 232,947 - 786 583,766 3,748,768
112,818 147,538 - - 205,716 883,753
2,265,411 1,183,956 86,580 213,573 2,252,419 15,272,069
- - 39 9 2,086 3,488
4,818 - 184 394 3,996 23,575
- - 245 209 39,463 53,530
59,670 33,122 170 3,078 45,020 463,581
7,791 - - - 10,245 75,444
- - - - 15,768 94,929
- - 220 18,763 3,794 30,133
110,958 26,365 - 37,953 111,323 514,520
20,284 - - - 33,999 271,858
31,899 13,097 69,594 37,102 64,812 699,190
596,617 412,755 615 963 840,375 6,563,186
832,037 485,339 71,067 98,471 1,170,881 8,793,434
519,323 186,727 - 786 532,130 2,644,931
132,264 57,810 - - 107,185 852,173
235,662 193,101 - - 84,924 1,047,637
- - - - 135,408 615,161
- - - - 28,780 28,780
546,125 260,979 15,513 114,316 193,111 1,289,953
$ 1,433,374 698,617 $ 15,513 $ 115,102 $ 1,081,538 $ 6,478,635
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Component Units
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(Amounts in Thousands)

Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Utility Taxes
Insurance Premium Tax
Liquor Taxes
Tobacco and Cigarette Taxes
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

Contributions to Permanent Funds and Endowments

Payments from State of Alabama
Special Items

Total General Revenues, Special Items, and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, October 1, 2007, as Restated
Net Assets, September 30, 2008

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Public Water
School and Housing Pollution University
College Mental Finance Control of
Authority Health Authority Authority Alabama
$ 374079 $ 900,386 3 73,103 3 31,281 $ 3,023,329
- 9,229 33,187 20,088 1,724,920
4 67,067 - 15,085 707,785
- - - - 73,630
4 76,296 33,187 35,173 2,506,335
(374,075) (824,090) (39,916) 3,892 (516,994)
- 127,016 - - -
- 4,525 - - -
- 13,930 - - -
23,645 498 56,003 10,543 (248,945)
- 28,306 169 3,759 4,392
- - - - 24,200
173,294 632,247 - 1,492 615,556
- - - - 26,067
196,939 806,522 56,172 15,794 421,270
(177,136) (17,568) 16,256 19,686 (95,724)
(1,201,937) 212,569 221,144 272,291 3,884,910
$ (1,379,073) $ 195001 $ 237,400 $ 291977 $ 3,789,186
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University Public State

of Education Employees' Nonmajor Total
Auburn South Employees' Health Component Component

University Alabama Health Insur Insurance Units Units
$ 806,326 $ 580,148 $ 700,506 $ 383,392 $ 1,067,496 $ 7,940,046
356,726 368,876 657,667 364,740 538,522 4,073,955
201,141 31,033 8 16 258,658 1,280,797
23,507 19,268 - - 7,747 124,152
581,374 419,177 657,675 364,756 804,927 5,478,904
(224,952) (160,971) (42,831) (18,636) (262,569) (2,461,142)
- - - - 1,220 128,236
- - - - - 4,525
- - - - - 13,930
- - - - 3,050 3,050
(11,431) (14,088) 6,413 4,105 9,659 (163,598)
- 18,748 - 132 26,999 82,505
412 9,496 - - 3 34,111
336,611 139,737 - - 368,609 2,267,546
- - - - - 26,067
325,592 153,893 6,413 4,237 409,540 2,396,372
100,640 (7,078) (36,418) (14,399) 146,971 (64,770)
1,332,734 705,695 51,931 129,501 934,567 6,543,405
$ 1,433,374 $ 698,617 $ 15,513 $ 115,102 $ 1,081,538 $ 6,478,635
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the State of Alabama (the primary
government) and its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations ("public corporations") for which the
primary government is financially accountable. Generally, the primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization's board and it can either 1) impose its will on the organization, or 2) there is a financial
benefit/burden relationship. If the primary government does not control the board, it may be financially accountable if the
organization is fiscally dependent on the State. Organizations making up the primary government and its component units are
summarized in the following paragraphs.

1. Primary Government

All state departments, agencies, elected officials, boards, commissions, authorities, committees, halls of fame, educational
institutions, and other state organizations (hereafter referred to as "agencies") which are not legally separate are, for financial
reporting purposes, part of the primary government. All agencies and funds that operate from within the State Treasury, except
those listed later as component units, are part of the primary government. The following non-Treasury agencies operate largely
independent of the control of the State Comptroller, State Auditor, and State Treasurer, but lack the corporate powers to make
them legally separate and are therefore part of the primary government:

¢ Alabama College System

o Alabama Skills Training Consortia

o Alabama Fire College

¢ Alabama Technology Network

o Athens State University

o Aviation Hall of Fame

e Cahaba Advisory Committee

e Commercial Mobile Radio Service Board
e Dental Examiners Board

e Dental Scholarships Awards Board

e Gorgas Memorial Board

e Alabama Industrial Development and Training Institute
e Marion Military Institute

o Medical Examiners and Licensure Commission
® Motor Sports Hall of Fame

e Optometric Scholarships Awards Board
e Optometry Board

e Pharmacy Board

e Pilotage Commission

¢ Podiatry Board

o School of Fine Arts

o St. Stephens Historical Commission

o State Port Authority

e Women's Hall of Fame

2. Blended Component Units

Blended component units are legally separate but they exist solely to provide services (usually financing) exclusively to the State.
Because of this close relationship, they are blended with and reported as though they are a part of the primary government. All
references in the financial statements or elsewhere in these notes to the term "primary government" will encompass both the
primary government and the blended component units.

The following blended component units were created for the purpose of financing capital expenditures for the State. Each issues
revenue bonds that are limited obligations of the component unit. Their boards consist of state officials and specific state revenues
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that are pledged for bond repayment. Those marked with a T are currently inactive and had no financial balances or activity in the
past fiscal year.

o Agriculture Markets and Coliseum Authority ¥

o Corrections Institution Finance Authority

e Federal Aid Highway Finance Authority

e Highway Authority ¥

o Industrial Access Road and Bridge Authority

¢ Judicial Building Authority

e Alabama Trade School and Junior College Authority T
e Public Health Care Authority

o Gulf State Park Authority¥

The Building Renovation Finance Authority has the same characteristics as those in the previous paragraph, but has the added
responsibility of operating, maintaining, and renting buildings in the capitol complex that are occupied by state departments.

The State Parks System Improvement Corporation renovates, improves, maintains, and constructs assets belonging to the State
Parks System. The six members of the Corporation are state officials.

The Forensic Science Bond Authority has the power to acquire, construct, and equip laboratories and other facilities for the State
Department of Forensic Sciences. The four members of the Authority are state officials. The Authority had no financial activity
in the past fiscal year.

The Alabama State Parking Deck Authority has the authority to sell bonds, operate, maintain, and rent space in a parking deck on a
block in the capitol complex. The Authority has remained inactive since the enabling legislation was passed.

The Educational Television Foundation Authority exists to receive, invest, and expend donated moneys for the purpose of
promoting the growth and development of educational television. The Authority consists of thirteen members who are appointed
by the Alabama Public Television Commission. As a non-profit public corporation, the Authority provides financing flexibility
that the Commission, as part of the primary government, would not otherwise have.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are organizations, which are legally separate and do not exist to provide services exclusively
to the primary government. Providing services to the citizens of the state is not considered the same as providing services to the
primary government institution. Financial information for discretely presented component units is segregated on the financial
statements and the notes in the "Component Unit" columns in order to emphasize that they are legally separate.

Most of the discretely presented component units have boards that are controlled by the primary government through the
appointment of a majority of the board members. The State has been determined to be financially accountable for each
organization because it can impose its will on each organization. Unless otherwise noted, financial accountability for each
organization described below exists at least in the ability of the State to modify the component unit's budget. Other manifestations
of financial accountability may also exist.

For discretely presented component units whose boards are not controlled by the State, the organization has been determined to be
fiscally dependent on the State. Unless otherwise noted, fiscal dependency exists at a minimum in the State’s ability to modify the
component unit’s budget. Other manifestations of fiscal dependency may also exist.

When audited financial statements for a discretely presented component unit exist, the address at which such financial statements
can be obtained is included in the following paragraphs describing each component unit. For all other discretely presented
component units, complete financial statements may be obtained from the State of Alabama, Office of State Comptroller, RSA
Union Building, Suite 206, Montgomery, AL 36130-2602.

The Water Pollution Control Authority operates a revolving loan fund to aid municipalities in financing the construction of
wastewater treatment facilities. A five-member board of directors made up of ex officio members governs the Authority. Audited
financial statements of the Authority may be obtained from the Alabama Department of Environmental Management, 1400
Coliseum Boulevard, Montgomery, AL 36130.
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The Alabama Drinking Water Finance Authority operates a revolving loan fund to aid local governments in financing the
construction of sanitary drinking water facilities. A five-member board of directors made up of ex officio members governs the
Authority. Audited financial statements of the Authority may be obtained from the Alabama Department of Environmental
Management, 1400 Coliseum Boulevard, Montgomery, AL 36130.

The Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation provides mental health and mental retardation services for the people of
Alabama. The Governor of the State and the commissioner of the Department constitute a public corporation and are advised by a
sixteen-member board of trustees. The commissioner and ten of the board members are appointed at the discretion of the
Governor. The Mental Health Finance Authority exists to provide financing services to the Department, is therefore a blended
component unit of the Department, and is included in all amounts reported for Mental Health.

The Crime Victims Compensation Commission awards compensation for economic losses arising from criminal conduct and
works to change laws to benefit crime victims. The Commission consists of three members who are appointed by the Governor.

The Tennessee Valley Exhibit Commission was created to operate a public exhibit based primarily on the history of and ongoing
activities of the Tennessee Valley Authority and various other public entities involved in energy research and development. The
sixteen-member Commission is appointed by the Governor. The building which housed the exhibit has been sold and the board is
no longer actively operating but it has not been legally dissolved by the legislature.

The State Industrial Development Authority issues bonds and uses the proceeds to make grants to local industrial development
boards. All members of the Authority are elected or appointed state officials.

The Alabama Education Foundation encourages donations of money for local school systems and invests the money for the benefit
of each local system. The Foundation is governed by a twelve-member board that is made up of state officials and other
individuals appointed by state authorities.

The Supercomputer Authority operates a supercomputer for the use of educational and governmental research institutions, private
b